Faculty Senate Minutes February 21, 2006

The meeting was called to order at 4:10 p.m. All departments were in attendance except Art and Nursing.

I. Minutes of the February 7, 2006 meeting

The minutes of the February 7, 2006 meeting of the Faculty Senate were approved as written.

II. Report of the Faculty Senate Chairperson

Dr. Börger-Greco noted that graduation is slated for May 13 at 10:00 and invited all faculty to attend. She also reported that the search for the Dean of Humanities and Social Sciences is progressing well.

A request was made for the agenda to be distributed prior to the day of Senate meetings. Dr. Börger-Greco indicated that she would do this in the future.

III. Report of the Student Senate President

Student Senate President Fayth Balsam reported that an impeachment trial was successfully conducted in Student Senate. The group is still working on Stay Warm events as well as advocacy issues.

IV. Report of the Graduate Student Association

Graduate Student Association Representative Meaghan Shirk reported that about 30 students, mostly in psychology, attended a recent traveling social held in Byerly. Discussion included how to apply for grants. The next social will be in McComsey. Additionally, an upcoming session about time management and balancing commitments will be co-sponsored by the Counseling Center.

V. Report of the Administrative Officers

President McNairy

President McNairy reported that she has recently been to a number of alumni events. She noted that faculty in the Meteorology program set up a successful alumni event in conjunction with their attendance at a national meeting. She encouraged other departments to consider planning similar events with support from the Advancement Office.

President McNairy distributed a report on budget issues. She noted that it is important that we understand our position and educate the media and public about the need for education funding. The report highlighted that the two main sources of Educational and General Revenue are tuition and state appropriations. As state appropriations have declined over the past 20 years, student tuition has increased in order to maintain an operational budget since the bulk of expenses are fixed costs such as salaries, wages and infrastructure services. She stressed that it is critical that the financial burden on students be kept minimal. President McNairy reported that the PASSHE request this year was greatly influenced by the advocacy of students. The current recommendation from the governor is for 4.5% appropriations increase, but this still needs legislative approval. The Board of Governors will then negotiate any tuition increase. She noted that no increase in tuition now will likely require greater increases in the future. She suggested that an increase of no more than 3% would limit the budget shortfall without adding a large burden to students. President McNairy strongly encouraged faculty members to join students in advocating on behalf of a balanced approach to these issues. She recommended contacting legislators as citizens concerned with support of higher education spending and appropriate tuition increases.

Senator Blazer indicated the need for informing constituents that a combined 4.5% increase in state appropriations and 3% increase in student tuition does not correlate to a 7.5% increase in our budget. It was noted that there are legislators who serve on the Board of Governors who will be involved in both decisions. In response to further questions on budget breakdowns, Dr. Rydell referred senators to detailed reports available on the Finance and Administration website. It was also noted that funding raised through the Development Office is part of the separate MU Foundation that handles investment of these funds to support scholarships. In addition, much of the public considers taxes and tuition as sufficient support of public universities despite drastic reductions in state appropriations. Senator DiBartolomeis expressed concern that programs like the costly centralized SAP system are creating additional costs that will exacerbate budget shortfalls. President McNairy reminded faculty that the Board of Governors, which includes many persons educated in private schools, has the legal authority to implement these requirements. The System presidents have shared concerns about SAP with the Board. President McNairy also stated that IT was doing everything to assure our ability to function under the new system. Dr. Rydell also pointed out that the proposed shortfall presented for 2007-2008 assumes that the 2006-2007 shortfall is paid by one-time funds. She stressed that any permanent increases in revenue or cuts in spending will help reduce shortfalls each year.

Provost Prabhu

Provost Prabhu reminded senators of the status of the inclement-weather days scheduled for April 11-12. These days may only be used to reschedule classes actually missed due to a weather-related delay or cancellation. No other class meetings may be scheduled on these days.

Executive Assistant to the President Phillips

Executive Assistant to the President Phillips distributed a proposal regarding clarification of issues relevant to the Incomplete Grade Policy [see Attachment #1]. She noted that the final form is signed and kept by the course instructor. Once the coursework is completed, the instructor should complete a Change of Grade form to be approved by the departmental chair and school dean. This process is now the same as for changing a grade for any other reason.

VI. Educator of the Year Award

Dr. Sepi Yalda reminded senators that there is a need for establishing a mechanism for oversight of the Educator of the Year Award.

A DiBartolomeis/Igyor motion was made to elect a faculty standing committee to oversee appointment of the Selection Committee and issues relating to the award process. A Mowrey/Edeh motion was made to have the Educator of the Year Award Oversight Committee consist of a Senator Chair, one member per school and one non-school member to be elected in one month and charged with establishing the membership of the Selection Committee and annual convening of the Selection Committee by March 1.

A request from Student Senate President Fayth Balsam for strong student input into this award was supported by faculty senators. Senator Mowrey noted that the Joint Senate Conference Committee has both faculty and student membership and could oversee the Educator of the Year Award.

A Kevorkian/Blazer motion to substitute the motions above with a motion to charge the Joint Senate Conference Committee to establish membership of the Selection Committee by April 18, 2006, convene the Selection Committee annually by March 1 and deal with issues that arise relating to oversight of the Educator of the Year Award was approved without dissent. The Mowrey/Edeh motion to charge the Joint Senate Conference Committee to establish membership of the Selection Committee by April 18, 2006, convene the Selection Committee by April 18, 2006, convene the Selection Committee annually by March 1 and deal with issues that arise relating to oversight of the Selection Committee by April 18, 2006, convene the Selection Committee annually by March 1 and deal with issues that arise relating to oversight of the Educator of the Year Award was approved without dissent.

A Mowrey/Miller motion to commend Dr. Yalda for her dedication to implementing the Educator of the Year Award was approved without dissent.

VII. Election of Faculty Senate Officers

Elections were postponed until the next meeting due to time constraints.

VIII. Faculty Emeritus

None

- IX. Reports of the Faculty Senate Standing Committees
 None
- X. Reports of the Faculty Senate Special Committees
 None
- XI. Proposed Courses and Programs

(1) CHANGE IN DELIVERY FORMAT

CHEM110: Request for Distance Learning designation was approved without dissent.

XII. General Education Review Committee

Today was the deadline for submission of departmental responses to the survey from GERC regarding General Education curriculum issues.

XIII. Other/New Business

None

XIV. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 5:45 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Aimee L. Miller Faculty Senate Secretary

Action Summary:

A DiBartolomeis/Igyor motion was made to elect a faculty standing committee to oversee appointment of the Selection Committee and issues relating to the award process. A Mowrey/Edeh motion was made to have the Educator of the Year Award Oversight Committee consist of a Senator Chair, one member per school and one non-school member to be elected in one month and charged with establishing the membership of the Selection Committee and annual convening of the Selection Committee by March 1.

A Kevorkian/Blazer motion to substitute the motions above with a motion to charge the Joint Senate Conference Committee to establish membership of the Selection Committee by April 18, 2006, convene the Selection Committee annually by March 1 and deal with issues that arise relating to oversight of the Educator of the Year Award was approved

without dissent. The Mowrey/Edeh motion to charge the Joint Senate Conference Committee to establish membership of the Selection Committee by April 18, 2006, convene the Selection Committee annually by March 1 and deal with issues that arise relating to oversight of the Educator of the Year Award was approved without dissent.

A Mowrey/Miller motion to commend Dr. Yalda for her dedication to implementing the Educator of the Year Award was approved without dissent.

Attachment #1

Proposed Clarification and Implementation Procedure for Incomplete Grade Policy (Developed in consultation with Deans Council, 2/15/06)

1. Text in paragraph 2 and paragraph 3 (first bulleted item) of current Incomplete policy needs to be inserted as indicated in red below in the undergraduate catalog and Governance Document, for clarification purposes:

A student must petition the course instructor for an incomplete grade. The student, in consultation with the course instructor will complete the appropriate form, indicate the reason the incomplete is being requested and clearly specifying the work to be completed, its completion date (the time granted for completion of this work may be less than the maximum time allowed), and the default grade that will be assigned in the event the course requirements are not satisfied. The instructor must approve this form. If approved, the student will retain a copy of this form and submit it to the instructor when the course work is completed.

An incomplete grade issued to a student on academic probation will not prevent or delay academic action for dismissal. A student's cumulative grade point average will be calculated based on all completed course work. A student is encouraged to complete the required work as soon as possible. The deadline for making up an incomplete is eight weeks from the completion of the term in which the incomplete was granted [fall, winter, spring, summer (summer calculated from the last day of summer session III)]. The instructor must submit either:

- a final grade on the change of grade form, approved by department chair and school dean; or
- a recommendation for an extension, requiring approval by the department chair and the school dean.

2. The following administrative procedure is proposed to simplify and standardize the processing of incomplete grades in support of the Incomplete policy:

- 1) Immediately after processing final grades, Registrar's Office (RO) will send a list of students with incomplete grades for that term to the school deans.
- One week before the deadline to make up an incomplete grade, the RO will send a reminder of the due date for submitting final grades to faculty and the school deans. Lists of students with unresolved incomplete grades will be included for both the instructors and the deans.
- 3) Approximately two weeks after the deadline to make up an incomplete grade, the RO will send the deans an updated list of students who still have unresolved incomplete grades.
- 4) School deans will forward the following documents to the registrar, as appropriate:
 - Change of grade forms with final grade assigned by the instructor and approved by chair and dean;
 - Forms for students whose request for an extension to the incomplete deadline was approved (RO will note extension date in student's record; extension dates are indicated on the list of unresolved incompletes);

- Forms for students who have not made up the incomplete course work, with instructions for the RO to process the default grade specified by the instructor
- 5) The RO will provide a Brio web report so that the deans' offices have the option to print an updated list of students with unresolved incompletes, if necessary.
- 6) The RO will add a check to the DARS degree audit so that students with unresolved incompletes from the Spring 2005 term or thereafter cannot satisfy graduation requirements until the work is completed.